




19.1133.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/21/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2355

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $68,700,000

Expenditures $250,000

Appropriations $250,000

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities $(1,300,000)

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

SB 2355 changes the taxation of all cigarette and tobacco products to a value-based, percentage of wholesale cost 
method of taxation.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 12 of SB 2355 imposes a cigarette tax of 28% of the wholesale cost. Section 18 repeals the existing tax on 
cigarettes, currently $.44 per pack. Other tobacco products all become taxed at the rate of 28% of the wholesale 
cost under the provisions of this bill, including e-cigarettes and e-products. 

The provisions that change the taxation method for cigarettes in this bill will result in a tax increase estimated to total 
approximately the equivalent of $.68 per package, overall. The tax on premium cigarettes will be greater and the tax 
on discount cigarettes will be less than this average amount.

Section 16 of the bill distributes one percent of all collections to cites based on population.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

If enacted, SB 2355 is expected to increase state general fund revenues by an estimated $68.7 million in the 2019-
21 biennium. This is due primarily to an increase in the tax on cigarettes, the inclusion of a wholesale tax on e-
cigarette products, and a change to an ad valorem tax of 28% of the wholesale cost on tobacco products currently 
taxed on a per-ounce basis.

Cities currently receive $.03 (of the total $.44) per package of cigarettes. The provisions of SB 2355 would change 
the cities' share to one-percent of total tobacco tax collections. This is expected to reduce city revenues by an 
estimated $1.3 million in the 2019-21 biennium.



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

There will be programming changes and administrative costs associated with this bill expected to total $250,000 for 
the 2019-21 biennium.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

If enacted, SB 2355 will require an increased appropriation of $250,000 to the tax commissioner's office for 
administrative costs.

Name: Kathryn Strombeck

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner

Telephone: 701.328.3402

Date Prepared: 01/29/2019
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 51-32-04, sections 57-36-01, 
57-36-02, 57-36-03, 57-36-04, 57-36-05, 57-36-05.1, 57-36-09, 57-36-09.1, 57-36-14, 
57-36-24, 57-36-25, 57-36-26, 57-36-28, 57-36-29, 57-36-31, and 57-36-33 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to tobacco product remote sale disclosure requirements and 
the excise tax on cigarettes and tobacco products; to repeal sections 57-36-06, 57-36-27, 
and 57-36-32 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to taxation of cigarettes; to provide 
a penalty; and to provide an effective date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 19 

 
Chairman Cook: Called the hearing to order on SB 2355.  
 
Senator Brad Bekkedahl: Introduced the bill. See attachment #1. The bill is a public health 
issue. The connection between the health issue and the tax side is that studies have shown 
increasing the price of products, can actually reduce the entry of use by youth. We are here 
to talk about e-cigs. This bill brings them into part of the tax code with this bill. One of the 
areas I believe in is that some of the products used in the e-cigs and liquid, do cause damage 
to the tissues in the mouth. One of the most common questions asked in the military field 
when I am doing dental work are, do you use alcohol and do you smoke. Those are big 
issues with health concerns. For most soldiers, when they tell me they smoke, I will ask them 
when and why they started. Many of them said they started when the joined the military. 
Lately, I have been writing down vaping as one of the things they do. I ask them if they have 
always vaped. Some people will say they only vape and then in the next year, they will say 
they smoke now because vaping didn’t do it for them. It appears that while e-cigs can assist 
people in getting off the smoking cigarettes, but now it also seems to be an entry point for 
people to get into the habit as well. In North Dakota, cigarettes are taxed at 44 cents per 
pack. Two years ago, we were 47th in the nation at the rate and now we are 49th. Last time it 
was changed in North Dakota was 1993. This bill would take the cigarettes to 28% of 
wholesale price tax rate. In SD are taxed at a $1.23 per pack. They are 24th in the nation. 
That is a 35% wholesale price. In Montana, they are taxed at $1.70 per pack which is 22nd in 
the country. That is 50% of the wholesale price. In Minnesota, they are taxed at $3.00 per 
pack which is the 6th highest. The price is 95% of the wholesale price. I thought that would 
be helpful for you to have. I also have an article that talks about the specific use of e-cigs. 
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The overview of e-cigs works by heating a liquid to generate an aerosol that the user inhales. 
The liquid in the e-cig is usually made up of prop oleum glycol, glycerin, flavoring, water, and 
nicotine. Some users will substitute THC for nicotine. E-cig users tend to reach lower blood 
nicotine concentrations that tobacco smokers. Reasons for vaping; smoking sensation, the 
thought that vaping is less harmful than cigarettes, circumvention of smoke free areas, and 
recreational enjoyment which is the number 1 use. They talk about how tobacco use of middle 
and high school students has been decreasing since 2014. Since the introduction of the e-
cig that number is now increasing. It is estimated that 1 in 5 high school students may now 
be using e-cig products. E-cig use from 2017-2018 increased nationwide; 78% among high 
school students, and 48% among middle school students. Although the percentage of 
nicotine is much lower, .3-1.8% than traditional tobacco products, one electronic cartridge 
which contains between 200-400 puffs, can equal the smoking of 2-3 packs of regular 
cigarettes. This results in a much higher risk of developing gum disease and tooth loss. The 
bottom line is that vaping can be just as dangerous, if not more when compared to smoking. 
According to a 2013-2014 survey, 81% of current youth e-cig users cited that the availability 
of appealing flavors is their primary use for their reason of vaping and using e-cigs.  
 
Chairman Cook: Do you know what the 28% of the wholesale price does to the 44 cents? 
What is it going to be if we increase it 28% of the wholesale price? 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: The increase would put it at approximately $1.12 per pack. It would go 
from 44 cents to the $1.12 per pack. That is still below all our neighboring states.  
 
Dennis Pathroff, Attorney, Zuger, Kirmis, and Smith Law Firm, Bismarck: Testified in 
support of the bill. See attachment #2.  
 
Chairman Cook: Were you involved in the drafting of the bill? 
 
Dennis Pathroff: Yes. 
 
Chairman Cook: Is this tax policy used in any other state?  
 
Dennis Pathroff: The 28% across the board is not used in any other states. We haven’t 
raised this since 1993. We have tried traditional approaches and we think that this new 
innovative approach might be pliable.  
 
Chairman Cook: Who was working with you on this approach?  
 
Dennis Pathroff: We had several different partners I which many of them are following me 
today. They have their different groups and they each have different reasons for supporting 
this in which they will explain to you. 
 
Chairman Cook: Did you have any communications with the tax department when you put 
this bill together?  
 
Dennis Pathroff: Not initially, but we have shown it to them and there are a few suggestions 
that I know the tax department is going to come up with today. I will let them speak to that. 
As far as implementing this legislation, there are a few hiccups that will need to be fixed but 
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we are more than willing to work with this committee and the tax dept. to come up with 
something that is suitable for everyone and to ultimately improve ND’s existing tobacco tax 
regulations.  
 
Chairman Cook: When you put a tax on the wholesale price, who pays the tax? 
 
Dennis Pathroff: I would like the tax department to answer those types of questions if that 
is okay. 
 
Chairman Cook: Okay that is fine. 
 
Senator Meyer: We are going to see well over 100% increase on the cigarette tax, but have 
we talked about anything on just focusing primarily on the e-cig devices and not wrapping 
everything else into this?  
 
Dennis Pathroff: If this bill could be used as a vehicle to address either of those issues, or 
both, our group would be more than willing to amend this bill to do that. Our two goals with 
this bill is to address the e-cig issue as well as the tobacco cigarette issue.  
 
Heather Austin, Executive Director for Tobacco Fee North Dakota: Testified in favor of 
the bill. See attachment #3. Heather read this packet to the committee. 
 
Chairman Cook: How many states tax e-cigs. 
 
Heather Austin: I know of 10.  
 
Heather Austin: Distributed attachment #4. Heather read this packet to the committee.  
 
Senator Unruh: I appreciate all the information of why to increase the tobacco tax but do 
you have some testimony on why we should change the way we tax the tobacco products? 
That is a big portion of what this bill does and I am still trying to figure that piece out.  
 
Heather Austin: I do not have written testimony that supports that, but I can speak to it. We 
have tried for 25 to raise tobacco taxes in a traditional way. The idea was brought forth to try 
something different and we embraced that it would accomplish the things we wanted it to. 
Raising the tax creates a less amount of ways that tobacco is taxed in our state. This would 
simplify things. It would be easier for us to make adjustments or not have to come back to 
the table in the future. We were open to exploring this and if there is language that can be 
used to strengthen this bill or conversation that needs to happen to go forward, we are happy 
to sit down and be part of that discussion to put the best legislation in place to protect our 
kids and citizens.  
 
Heather Austin: Distributed attachments #5-9. 
 
Neil Charvat, Director of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Program for the ND Dept. 
of Helath: Testified in support of the bill. See attachment #10. Neil read the attachment to 
the committee.  
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Senator Meyer: Would these laws of the gum patches be taxed 20%?  
 
Neil Charvat: These are currently exempt from any taxation because they are FDA approved 
medications.  
 
Chairman Cook: I knew a guy that smoked for 42 years, he went cold turkey one morning 
and used an e-cig for 5 days to get off of cigarettes. They do work. Neil I have a question, 
ND Quits, is that a program of the health department? 
 
Neil Charvat: Yes. I actually administer that program.  
 
Chairman Cook: It is basically a hotline that people call?  
 
Neil Charvat: It is an online or telephone service in which we provide services to help people 
quit with free medication.  
 
Chairman Cook: How many people are up there answering the phones? 
 
Neil Charvat: We have 4 people in ND providing the counseling. We have another base at 
UND Medical school. We also have the service provided through a vendor called National 
Jewish Help which is a hospital system. They actually answer the initial calls and do the 
intake for us. They have the system capability to do that.  
 
Chairman Cook: Approximately how much do we spend for that? 
 
Neil Charvat: It would be under $2 million for the biennium.  
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: Testified in favor of the bill. See attachment #11. Jennifer read her 
testimony to the committee.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: I have heard of these many different devices. Are they interchangeable. 
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: They are different devices with liquid nicotine in them. Some put the 
nicotine is and some are to open the container and start drawing from it.  
 
Chairman Cook: JUUL is a manufacturer correct? 
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: Correct. 
 
Senator Kannianen: What measurement unit is used for nicotine in a product when we talk 
about how much is in a pod or a pack of cigarettes?  
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: When we use measurements, we think of a regular cigarette as having 
1-2 milligrams of nicotine. When we think about a can of chew we think about someone taking 
a pinch and it being about 4 cigarettes worth. With the puffs delivered from pods, it is about 
a pack of cigarettes with each pod. Students tell me that they are using 1-2 pods a day. 
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Senator Kannianen: It was mentioned that it is seen as an entry point because people tell 
him that after a while the e-cigs didn’t do it for them, so they went to cigarettes. When you 
say that the e-cigs have a higher nicotine content and are more addictive, he mentioned that 
it was the opposite for some people. That seems contradictory to me.  
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: With the products, are student who never have tried cigarettes, are 
going straight to the vaping and e-cigs. When they don’t get the kick they are looking for fro 
the product, then they might try the cigarette is what he was trying to say.  
 
Jennifer Schaeffer: Distributed testimony of Melissa Markegard, the Tobacco Prevention 
Coordinator at Fargo Cass Public Health. See attachment #12. 
 
Joan Connell: Testified in favor of the bill. See attachment #13. Joan read her testimony to 
the committee.  
 
Chairman Cook: I keep hearing that these e-cig products are being marketed to our youth. 
How are they doing that?  
 
Joan Connell: The preceding provider talked about the appealing flavors. If you also listen 
to the ads, they show people who used to smoke and now they JUUL which helped them 
quit. It states that their moms are happy about that. That is so full of propaganda that it is 
sickening.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any other testimony in support? Testimony in opposed? 
 
Monte Williams, Altria: Testified in opposition of the bill. See attachment #14. I have two 
packs of cigarettes that I brought with me today. They are both the same. They are class A 
cigarettes at 20 cigarettes per pack. Currently they are taxed at the same rate in ND. Under 
the proposal of this bill, one would pay $1.34 in tax, and this one would pay 88 cents. It isn’t 
simpler to do for anyone. It just sounds more simple because it is a percentage times but it 
is the base that it’s applied to that brings in the level of complication. It also changes smoking 
preference. Someone may go down to a cheaper pack. It doesn’t mean they quit, they just 
go down because the tax system is pushing them that way. Using an average price per pack 
is great for revenue estimates but when you are looking at the actual application of the tax, 
you have to use what the marketplace really has in it. The wholesalers don’t get to do that. 
That is why all 50 state tax on a unit based system. No state taxes on an ad valorem basis. 
It also leads to market manipulation by the pricing policies of the tobacco companies. For 
example, if you have a 2 for 1, under an ad valorem system, you only get the price of one of 
the packs. Under a unit system, you get taxed on all 40 cigarettes. You do not want to have 
a tax system that has pricing policies that will keep the state from getting the money it should. 
You currently have a really good unit system for almost all the products in the category. It is 
simple for the state and wholesalers to apply. I urge you to keep that system you have.  
 
Senator Patten: How does ND compare to other state as far as the per pack rate? 
 
Monte Williams: It is one of the lowest ones in the country.  
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Senator Unruh: With the proposal as it sits in front of us, could you expand on the impact of 
the market and consumers if we switched over to the method of taxation.  
 
Monte Williams: A certain product is taxed by 22 states in a unit basis and the rest are on an 
ad valorem basis. We have information to show the impact on the market under both 
systems. Under a unit based system, the market place is not impacted. Premium and 
discount products are almost 50/50. When you move into an ad valorem state, the discount 
market rate move considerably faster. One of these packs would be 98 cents and the other 
would be 76 cents. That drives consumers down. Every time one goes down, your tax 
revenue goes down.  
 
Senator Unruh: If we switched, we would be picking winners and losers? 
 
Monte Williams: Your tax policy would help establish a retail price of products in the 
marketplace where today, it doesn’t. That drives consumer behavior because prices change 
based on that system.  
 
Senator Unruh: Could you talk about why this doesn’t work when the retail price goes up 
and how that effects consumers? Why doesn’t this Ad valorem system work?  
 
Monte Williams: It makes the system more complicated. You are getting more revenue 
under this current proposal, simply because you are raising the rates substantially. It changes 
the retail patterns of people because the prices change based on the tax policy. A consumer 
that looks at two products today and they know the prices. If this system was put into place, 
those prices would change. The premium would go up but the discount would go up as much. 
Consumer behavior would be to change to a lower priced product after that. That means the 
revenue goes down with it. For budgeting purposes, you can estimate how many packs of 
cigarettes but you have no idea what the pricing policies of the companies are going to be.  
 
Chairman Cook: I always consider myself as a tax geek, and it seems like you have the 
disease really bad as well.  
 
Monte Williams: Yes, I do Mr. Chairman. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: I am trying to find out if there is some sort of parallel here. If you walk 
into a gas station and there are 200 different types of candy bars. They are all different prices. 
They all pay a sales tax at the till. So, you say we are picking winners and losers in the candy 
bar business by having a sales tax? 
 
Monte Williams: No. When you have an excise tax, you are picking winners and losers when 
you move to an ad valorem system. There is no excise tax on candy bars. There is a sales 
tax and an excise tax on tobacco products. Whatever you do with the excise tax, you still 
have the sales tax on top of that. If you put an excise tax on candy bars, the cheaper candy 
bars would have less tax than the more expensive ones, but by a greater margin because of 
the tax policy.  
 
Mike Rud: Testified in opposition of the bill. We are opposed to this bill based on many of 
the reasons that Monte just described. Distributed testimony of Kelly Kaiser who is the owner 
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of O.K. Distributing. See attachment #15. Yes, we haven’t raised the taxes in 25 years, but it 
has been before this body time and time again and the answer continues to be no. This isn’t 
the first rodeo for initiated measures either because we just saw one again not too long ago 
on this issue. The public spoke out and said no to a tax increase. Our marketers have a lot 
of concern on the wholesale side as well. I would urge a do not pass on this bill.  
 
Chairman Cook: How challenging would it be for a retailer to go to this type of a taxing 
scheme. 
 
Mike Rud: I haven’t heard from a lot of them. There are concerns out there but I do not know 
to what degree that is. I wouldn’t know until it would be implemented. I know the wholesale 
distributors are extremely concerned about what they would have to do with their systems in 
order to administer this to their hundreds of customers across the state and in the area.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: The trend that is used in user fees, is the cost related to tobacco use, 
is up in the $700 million and that the revenue from tobacco is in $60 million. It appears that 
the government subsidized and provides a subsidy to the tobacco users. They are not 
covering the costs that are reflected in government expense related to tobacco use. Does it 
seem like we are not covering the cost of the use of tobacco? If you are against the bill, how 
would we address this issue that we have these government related costs but we don’t have 
the revenue that we need to cover from those causes of the expenses? 
 
Mike Rud: I think it is similar with what we are seeing in the gas tax situation. These are 
regressive taxes and tobacco is no different. We have less than 20% of the population that 
you will stick this bill on to try and raise this revenue. I think you saw, during the last initiated 
measure, the people of ND didn’t want to stand for that. We all want to take care of the 
veterans but let’s all do it, not just the folks who are smoking tobacco. The number from 2018 
that I saw, the folks that are using tobacco products paid over $120 million in taxes. Should 
we continue to punish them? If we are going to find a solution and address this disease, then 
let’s do it across the state and not pick on the same group.  
 
Senator Meyer: Do you have any breakdown on the socio economic status of those tax 
payers? 
 
Mike Rud. One third of the smokers in ND earn less than $15,000 and I think there is only a 
very small portion that make over $50,000. This is something that has a huge impact on socio 
economic ramifications for those folks who can least afford to be up there. To increase the 
tax, is that going to guarantee that they are going to quit? 
 
Senator Patten: I am hearing two separate issues that you are objecting to. One is a 
transition from a per unit tax to a percentage tax. That is the primary objection from the people 
you represent. Then the second, is the amount of the tax. Is that correct?  
 
Mike Rud: As you talked about in two separate cases, I think there is concern about how we 
administer this. At the retail level, that is first and foremost. That would be how I would visit 
with the different communities. The tax department can lend light to that as well.  
 
Senator Kannianen: What are your thoughts on the e-cigarette portion of this? 
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Mike Rud: I think we could argue back and forth about that. The proponents of this bill will 
tell you that we need to stop the e-cigs but I have seen studies that say this idea of using e-
cigs as a harm reduction tool could save millions of lives in the 21st century. There is data 
that goes both ways. People who own vape shops say they have helped thousands of people 
in ND stop smoking. I think that is a debate that I think will continue until the FDA takes action.  
 
Arik Spencer, President and CEO of the Greater ND Chamber: Testified in opposition of 
the bill. One of our primary goals is for ND to have a great business climate. Anytime we are 
modifying tax, caution needs to be given about the impact it will have on distributors and 
retailers. With that, I just urge caution and would be happy to answer any questions you have.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Should the state and the government be subsidizing the use of 
tobacco?  
 
Arik Spencer: I think as we look across the state government, there is a balance between 
user fees and the services provided. I used to work for ND Parks and Recs. There was a 
user fee to access the state park but the state provides millions of dollars in assistance. The 
university system is the same way. You lawmakers have the challenge of balancing the user 
fees and what level of support the states should offer. I do not know if I have a good answer 
for you but that is a balancing issue that our state needs to address.  
 
Chairman Cook: Senator Dotzenrod, if we are going to go down that road, how about alcohol 
use, obesity; I think the question is what to what degree should this committee try to control 
social issues with taxes.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: We could probably get in to some good committee discussion here.  
 
Chairman Cook: I think we could.  
 
Brian Riek, Director of Operations, Infinite Vapor: Testified in opposition of the bill. We 
have 5 locations in Wisconsin, and 4 in Minnesota. We are based out of Minneapolis where 
we currently deal with the 95% excise tax on nicotine products. We see the effects in our 
stores there. We have 4 locations in ND. One in Bismarck, Minot, Grand Forks, and Fargo. I 
gear my opposition towards not having the inclusion of vapor products. There has been 
studies that say it is a 95% of a healthier alternative to smoking traditional tobacco products. 
I believe they actually do prescribe vaporizers in a certain strength for user of those products 
in the U.K. I want to comment on a few things that were said before me. Regarding the 
milligram concentration of a traditional cigarette; it was said to be between 1-2 milligrams. 
Most studies I have seen indicate that domestic cigarettes are between 6 and 13 milligrams 
of nicotine per cigarette. Other imported cigarettes can range from 7-29 milligrams. That is 
substantially higher. When you talk about traditional methods and blends; I know the 
conversation is the flavor component. With vaping, most people are utilizing a product with 3 
milligrams of nicotine per milliliter. The amount of puffs it takes to get through that milliliter is 
substantially higher. Sometimes it is 50-100 times higher, depending on the unit and the 
device. This is a vaporization process. It eliminates the creation of tars that comes from 
combustible tobacco products. At the end of the day, I think we are here from the same 
reason. We are concerned about the public health, but at the same time, ultimately, vapor 
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products do provide a good alternative for traditional tobacco users. We have helped tens of 
thousands of customers to quit. Between our 4 stores in ND, we probably service more 
people on a daily basis than the quit phone lines.  
 
Alexis Newton, Regional Manager of Infinite Vapor: Testified in opposition to the bill. I 
feel like I have heard good points from both sides. I would like to read a quote from Dr. Scott 
Gottlieb, the current FDA commissioner. “If every adult smoker switched to electronic 
cigarettes, that would be a tremendous benefit to public health.” I see that a lot of this is 
directed towards preventing kids from using these e-cig products. While this bill is being 
viewed as that, I also feel that the price increase would really affect the adults who are on 
their journey to tobacco free. The largest impact I foresee happening, are being forced to 
shut down, depending on the prices. People are going to pay the prices no matter what 
because this is the product they are choosing to use. Currently in MN, they have a 95% tax 
on tobacco products. That is very hard for them to get e-liquid in because of the price. These 
manufacturers are forced to pay these taxes for them to get that into the stores, or else, they 
aren’t able to get the products their consumers want. I would like to clarify some of the points 
earlier; we deal with all refillable devices. They choose the device and then they choose the 
strength of nicotine. The strengths are 0,3,6,12, and 18 milligrams in regular e-liquid. Three 
is the most common strength. That is 3 milligrams of nicotine per milliliter. We recommend 
anyone who smokes a pack or more a day to start around 12. Most of our customers who 
come in, are not necessarily using them for a long term thing. A lot of the time they are using 
them as a short term thing to gradually bring themselves down with the different strengths; 
ideally to none. I will stand for questions.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any further testimony opposed? Neutral? Miles, can you come up here 
and answer some questions. 
 
Miles Vosberg: Testified neutrally for the bill. If you look at the bottom of page 3 of the bill, 
we have a definition of wholesale purchase price. That price is including the federal excise 
tax, the freight charges, packing costs, etc. If you do to page 10, where the tax is imposed at 
28% of the wholesale price, it redefines the wholesale price to be the established price for 
which a manufacturer sells the tobacco products. There is a conflict between those two 
definitions; if the intent is for the wholesale price to be more est. by the manufacturer, or the 
definition at the beginning of the chapter where is it including all the additional costs 
associated with that. Further on page 10, where it imposes the tax on lines 13-18, it says the 
tax will be imposed on the distributor when they cause it to be brought into the state. I am 
not sure how all of these apply; especially a and c. Is it when the products are brought into 
the state? Is it when they are actually sold to the retailer? Subsection B is to deal with the 
products that are being nixed by the seller. A and C seem to have some conflict. If you go to 
the bottom of page 10, it talks about tobacco products that a retailer combines or mixes which 
I believe goes back to subsection B. Then there is a tax impose of 28 percent on the retail 
price. It appears that there is a tax on line 15 when it is mixed and then again when it is sold. 
Those are some of the language problems we have.  
 
Chairman Cook: Did you work with the drafters of this bill at all? 
 
Miles Vosberg: We did not, but we are happy too if they would like moving forward. We 
would like to clearly identify the intent of the bill and try to structure it more clearly.  
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Chairman Cook: I am surprised to see a fiscal note for only a quarter of a million dollars. I 
have seen that on other bill that I thought were much simpler to put in order. Are you 
comfortable with that number? 
 
Miles Vosberg: It is definitely going to cost and we are going to have to restructure our entire 
system of the way we administer the tax now. It would be a major overhaul to our system. 
We basically have to start over.  
 
Chairman Cook: Is it safe for me to say that this is going to have some cost for the retailers 
to administer this. 
 
Miles Vosberg: I am not exactly sure about the retailers. Based on the language where there 
are taxes imposed on the retail price, then yes certainly they will need to identify, collect, and 
keep another tax separate to register and remit. There would be additional work for some of 
the retailers. 
 
Senator Patten: If the per unit price stayed as a basis for the tax, you would not incur the 
level of expenditures to modify your systems, correct?  
 
Miles Vosberg: Yes. There are three components; electronic, the change to the wholesale 
price on the cigarettes and other products as well. We would need to make a change there 
unless that unit based tobacco product price would remain in place as well.  
 
Senator Patten: The fiscal not shows a $1.3 million loss in revenue to the cities. Can you 
explain why?  
 
Mile Vosberg: Currently the cities get a portion of the cigarette tax. It is about 3 cents per 
cigarette. The shift to the wholesale price transfers 1% of that to the cities. That is not enough. 
If it went to 2%, that would probably keep the cities whole and not lose any revenue.  
 
Senator Unruh: I know we have some agreements in place with the tribes. How would this 
affect those or would they even at all? 
 
Miles Vosberg: Under the agreement, the tax on the reservation is the same as the rest of 
the state and we share that revenue. If we maintain that revenue split, it would not impact 
that agreement.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Under our current system. There is this process where there is a stamp 
imprinted on cigarette packs correct? 
 
Miles Vosberg: ND does not stamp. Most states do. The wholesalers that are used to 
stamping in the other states and they sell in multiple states, it would be a challenge for them.  
 
Chairman Cook: This bill was introduced as a means to simplify the tax system; I think it is 
safe to come to a conclusion (inaudible) 
 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee  
SB 2355 
January 30, 2019 
Page 11  
   

Miles Vosberg: For us, it probably doesn’t, because we would have to redo our existing 
system.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any further neutral testimony?  
 
Josh Brown, Resource Officer, Bismarck Police Dept.: Testified neutrally for the bill. See 
attachment #16. We want to bring you the information we are seeing in the schools. The 
bathroom is the hotspot where kids are sharing these pods. They will send a text and go 
meet in the bathroom and hit it hard and come out and go back to class. I was a smoker for 
25 years. I recently quit. I get both ends of it. In my opinion, from what I have seen since I 
have been in school, I think the e-cigs are going to be a bigger problem than the regular ones 
were. The amount of students using, is significantly greater than regular tobacco products. 
The flavors significantly help them do it. It makes it easier for them to take the hit. You do not 
have that physical impact that would turn people off from doing the regular ones.  
 
Chairman Cook: Do you have a lot of video? 
 
Josh Brown: I do, but they are in evidence so I can’t bring them out to you. I usually see 
snapchats where we do search warrants to receive those, or I will do a phone extraction and 
I will see them on there. It nothing I really go after; I just have noticed it a lot. I am more 
surprised if I don’t see it.  
 
Senator Unruh: Can the dogs detect the nicotine in the e-cigs? 
 
Josh Brown: No. 
 
Brett Anderson, School Resource Officer, Bismarck High School: Testified neutrally for 
the bill. See attachment #17 and #18. A lot of our issues go hand in hand at the different high 
schools. On the graph I handed out, you can see the amount of students who have had the 
e-cigs, pods, or JUUL devices. I actually had a young man who was not of the age of 18, 
who was also selling the JUUL pods and juices for a $10 markup.  
 
Chairman Cook: That has been going on a lot even with regular cigs in schools. When they 
are willing to pay a markup like that, do you really think a tax increase is going to slow them 
down? 
 
Brett Anderson: I have a son who works at a local restaurant and makes $12.50 an hour. 
That is a lot. I think kids have such a disposable income and now it’s not as huge of a deal 
to fork our 25-30 dollars for a device.  
 
Senator Meyer: What happened in 2016? That is a significant drop.  
 
Brett Anderson: It depends on how busy you are and what is going on. If you deal with 
multiple students that have multiple infractions, you might cut them a break. That was also 
during the protest. Things kind of got shut down. However, now, the vaping and those types 
of things are going off the charts.  
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Chairman Cook: Any further testimony? Hearing none, we will close the hearing for SB 
2355.  
 
Additional testimony was emailed to the clerk after the hearing took place. See 
attachment #19.  
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